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Acronyms & Gtossary of Terms

OG Board of Govemors

Institutc of Certifi cd Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Technical Training Institute

Tcacher Training College

Technical Vocational College

Key management personnel who have financial responsibility in the entity

CPAK

SAS

duciary Management

ttobe
a list ofAcronyms and glossary of terms used la the financlal rcPort as Per above example. The
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I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Backgroundinformation

North Eastern National Polyechnic, NENAP is the former North Eastern Province Technical

Training Institute or NEPTTI. The institution became a National Polytechnic through the North

Eastern National Polyechnic Legal order of30th May 2016, under legal Notice No 89 provided for
in Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) Act,2013.
The Polytechnic is situated within Garissa Township and occupies a 58-acre piece of land. The

Institution was established as a community-based Technical Secondary school in I983. In 1985 it
was taken over by the Government and in 1998 it was converted to a Technical Training Institute a

status it has held for three decades before assuming its curent status as a National Polflechnic.

Currently it is the only Government National polyechnic that offers Vocational, Technical and

Entrepreneurial training in the whole of North-Eastern province and its environs. NENAP has a

strategic plan and is managed by a Governing Council appointed by the Ministry of Education and

run on a day-to-day basis by a principal who is appointed under the State department Vocational and

Technical Training

(b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity/mission ofthe Polytechnic is to train highly skilled workforce that is suitable

for iurther professional development through quality inclusive and equitable TVET programs

responsive to national and global competitiveness, irnplementing training in TVET programs,

carrying out research programs, and innovation into products and services

The core functions of North Eastern National Polytechnic include;
(a) Provide directly, or in collaboration with other institutions of higher learning, facilities for

technical trainers in technological, professional, scientific education; conduct examinations for and

grant such academic awards as provided under the polyechnic order.
(b) Participate in technological innovation as well as in the discovery, transmission and

enhancement of knowledge and to stimulate the intellectual life in the economic, social cultural,

scientific, and technological development;
(c) Contribute to industrial and technological development of Kenya in collaboration with industry

and other organizations through transfer oftechnology and adopting programs that address the needs

of the local community and the Nation at large.
(d) Develop an institution with excellence in teaching, training, scholarship, entrepreneurship,

research, consultancy, community service, among other educational services and products, with
emphasis on technology and its development, impact and application within and outside Kenya)

(c) Key Management

The Polyechnic's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

Council
Accounting offi cerl Principal
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(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held ofiice during the financial year ended 30s June 2020 and

who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Name

I
Principal/Secretary
Governing Council

to
Show Fondo Kalam

2
Deputy
Administration

Principal,
Abdirahman Kassim Shakul

J Deouty Principal, Academics lruMs Wan

4 Registrar John Githin I

5 The Dean of Students Timoth N asanl

6 Finance Office Vincent Ohana

7 Procurement Oflicer Abdirizack Sheikh

8 Domnic K. Mativo Intemal Auditor

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

Name of the Comminee Members

Finance, infrastructure and HRM committee

Shakir Hussein
David Kivoto
Halkano Roba Duba
Muhammad H. Noor

- Chairman
- Member
- Member
- Principal

Audit/Risk Management committee
Hassan Absiye
Salome Mwangi
Domnic Kalonzo

- Chairman
- Member
- Internal Auditor

vt
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(f) EntityHeadquarters

North Eastern National Polyechnic
P.O. Box 329-70100
Garissa,
KENYA

(g) Entity Contacts

Telephone :( 25 4)7 I 6 06017 8817247 507 04

E-mail : info@rortheasternpoly.ac.ke
Website: www.northeasternpoly.ac.ke

(h) Entity Bankers

l. Kenya Commercial Bank
Garissa Branch
P.O. Box 143

Garissa, Kenya

(D IndependentAuditors

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
cPo 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

0) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

vll
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2. THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

- Council Chairman

MR. MOHAMMED SHEIKH ABDI

56 yrs Old, Certified project management
professional, APM Group (UK), 201 3

Master's in Business Administration, (HRM &
Strategic Management ) UoN 2008

Certified Public Secretary CPS(K) KASNEB
2006
Bachelor of Arts BA & Econ, Moi
University,l99l

- Council Member

\
,a-.r/

MR. SFIAKIR HUSSEIN MOHAMED

45 years old, Master of Science (Finance and

Investment) from KCA UniversitY.

Bachelor of Business Adm in istration-Finance
Option from Kenya Methodist University

Certified Public Accountant ofKenya (CPA K)

- Council Member

MS. SALOME CHEMJOR MWANGI

58 years old, Master of Arts Degree in Project

Planning and Management-Un iversity of Nairobi.

Bachelors of Science Degree in Agriculture and

Human Ecology Extension, Egerton university-
Njoro.
Diploma in Agriculture and Home Economics,

Bukura College of Agriculture and Certificate in

General Agriculture and Home Economics

vlll
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55 years old, Has Bs. Technology degree in
Education from.
Has Technical Training background with an

Higher Diplom in Building and Civil
Engineering.
He currently in-charge ofEducation affairs in
Kitui County.
Has rich background in partnership

engagements.

MR. DAVID KIVOTO

- Council Member

Kenyatta University Graduate in Master of
Education degree in Education Administration

Kenyatta University Graduate, Bachelor of
Education degree (Early Childhood Education)

Has worked for Teachers Service Commission
(TSC) and Kenya Institute ofEducation (now

Kenya Institute of Curiculum Development
(KrcD) UPT 2019

MR. HASSAN ABSIYE AHMED

- Council Member

o Area of specialization, Project Engineering '

Graduate Engineer Qualification: BSc Civil
. Engineering & CPA-II.
. Registered with Engineers board of Kenya

(EBK), institution of engineers of Kenya (lEK)
. And also with the Institution of Engineering

Technologists and Technicians ofKenya (lET)

MR, HALKANO ROBA DUBA

Council Member

tx
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Mr Muhammad Noor Hassan is the curent Chief
Principal of North Eastern National Polytechnic

and Secretary to the Governing Council, He has,

Master Degree in Business Administration from

Kampala International University.

Bachelors Degree in Education from Moi
University ( Eldoret)

a

a

MR MUHAMMADNOOR HASSAN
( The Immediate Former PrinciPal)

Mr Show Fondo Kalama, currently the Principal

and Secretary to the Governing Council' is a

holder of Masters in Business Administration
(Strategic Management) and B.Ed (Arts) both

from Kenyatta University.

Has 20 years' experience in the teaching

profession.

a

MR. SHOW FONDO KALAMA
(The Current Principal)

x
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2. Key Management Team

Show Fondo Kalama
The Curent Principal/Secretary to the Governing
Council

Muhammad Noor
Hassan

The immediate former Principal

Abdirahman Kassim
Shakul

Deputy Principal, Admin istration

Ms Margret Wanjiru
1.

\

Deputy Principal, Academics

John Githinji Registrar

Geoffrey Maina Osoro Dean Of Students

xt
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Vincent Ohana
Finance Officer

Domnic K. Mativo Internal Auditor

Abdirizack Sheikh

I t,

It

Procurement Oflicer

x
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3. Chairman'sStatement

The office of the Chairperson of the governing council of the North Eastern National Polytechnic

(NENAP) has been activ; during the yeir under review in managing the affairs of the Polltechnic. We

i"ckon ti.," existing challenges- including the issues of security, learning facilities,- fewer teaching

resources but above all the culture that issociates technical training with mundane life. This requires

change in the mindset ofour people as we leveraged on the leaders to sensitize and educate our people to

embr-ace the concept of technical and vocational training for our youth. The council is committed to

ensuring that the changing world around is sensitive to the needs ofthe future'

We have continued !o collaborate with a number of agencies both public and private sector in our

endeavor to grow the institution. Our desire to achieve and deliver on our mandate has seen our drive in

reaching out to each and every other partner willing to work with us'

During the year under review, the Polyechnic management has carried out an aggressive popularity

"urnpulgn 
inGarissa county and its environs. our mandate is to grow the student population through a

number'of strategies including effective outreach programs geared to popularize the institution from

within and arounJ the County.bn matters of security, the management has put certain m-easures in place

to beef security. This gestuie of security provision has boosted somewhat the level of security in the

institution to both staffand students.

As a council, we endeavour to continually putting in place governance systems to ensure that we not only

co-ply with the code of ethics but enlage in prudent leadership practices that creates value for the

folytecf,nic. The Polytechnic has remain-ed1 goob corporate citizen that meets its obligations for its staff

and students as well as the national obligation

The Polytechnic registered remarkable development during the period under-review.in the realization of

its muniate with sipport of the Ministry of 
'Education, 

slate department of Vocatio.nal and Technical

Training. As a result, the polytechnic has now been able to steer its progress through.-market research,

linkagei collaboration and partnerships. The polyteclrnic continues to register an overall improvement in

its peifoimance due to enhanced resources, physical facilities and infrastructure.

special thanks go to the state Department of vocational and Technical Training, Ministry of education,

the County GoJernment of Garisia and all other development partners for the su.pport they continue to

accord the polyechnic, without which our achievements would not have been realized. Finally I wish to

appreciate my'Council members and the management staff for their efforts in supporting the realization of

the polYechnic mandate.

@.r,"
Mohamed S Abdi
Chairman/Governing Counci I

xlll
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4. Report of the Principal

Pursuant to Section 83 ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 2012,1take this opportunity to present the

Polytechnic's Annual Report and Financial Statements for the period ended 30 June 2023. The report

focuses on the Polltechnic's Strategic intent enshrined in our performance contract which include

improvement of physical facilities and infrastructure, curriculum development, acquisition of workshop

equipment and ICT infrastructure, advancement ofTVET programs by promoting Research & Innovation,

Partnership/linkages and environmental management. Fu(her, the Polytechnic envisages to strengthen its

financial base through promotion ofgood governance and effective management.

The above strategic issues are part of broad initiatives undertaken by the Polltechnic planning system to

impart relevance to current National TVET reforms. This defines the Polytechnic's mandate aimed at

enhancing quality, competitiveness, creativity and innovativeness in TVET education. This report is

prrmised on involvement on account of analysis of goals, strategic issues, strategic objectives, strategies

and activities that the Polytechnic intends to pursue in the next three years. The mandate ofthe Governing

Council among other things is to provide apex management towards achieving the Polytechnic mandate

as per the TVET Act 2013.Lnthe year under review, the Polytechnic intends to employ through the PSC;

Vocational and Technical Trainers.

The Polytechnic has deepened collaboration towards enhancing staff capacity as well as incorporating

best international practices. The Polytechnic still expects to benefit fronr YAW-K collaboration through

acquisition of ICi, Automotive Lab and Research grants among others. The Polytechnic is an active

player in the research and innovation initiatives. The Pollechnic is committed to ensuring that the

iompound is beautified and landscaping within the compound is continually improved.

Challenges

The Polytechnic emphasizes on the need for adequate staffing for effective education in all depa(ments.

Majority of the depirtrnents do not have sufficient staff to handle the trainees. Shortage of trainers is

theiefoie one of th; challenges facing the Institution. In order to alleviate the shortage, the Polytechnic

has been hiring part-time staff to teach the trainees. The staff are paid by the Polyechnic from its meagre

resources. Duiing the FY 202212023, the Polyechnic maintained 20 trainers under the Council but the

number is likely to increase due to our increased programs.

Continuous dynamism in the ICT sector where both upgrade and updates of website are a priority, LAN
enhancement as well as campus management system are not one-off systems as they require continuous

upgrade. The systems are important as they assist in student admissions, fees processing, payments and

examinations' registration.

,,W
Show Fondo Kalama.
Principal/Secretary to Governing Council

xlv
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5. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives

North Eastern National Polytechnic's strategic pillars within its strategic plan for the FY 202112025 are as

follows.
l. To provide quality training
2. To increase infrastructural facilities
3. To enhance security surveillance.
4. To increase and strengthen NENAP human resource capacity

5. To enhance good governance and management practices

6. To integrate ICT in all training and management operations

7. To provide research and innovation in NENAP
8. To increase the polltechnics financial base

9. To raise the Polytechnics profile in the region

10. To provide quality customer service in line with the quality management system

I L To itrengthen partnerships, linkages andtollaborations
12. To improve trainee welfare
13. To irnprove the polytechnics environment to make it conducive for training and learning.

The Institution achieved its performance targets set for the financial year 2020121 period for its eight

strategic pillars as indicated in the diagram below.

Strstegic
Pillar

Stratesics Activitics Outcomes

To Provide
quality
training:
development
ofnew
curricular

Expansion of
training
programmes

-Fornr curricular
development tcam
-Train curricular
developers

a) Competent and skilled human resource that fits in the labour

markct
b) Academics programmes that are aligned with industry and

intcmational standards

To incrcase
infrastructural
facilities

Build food and
beverage

-Develop a proposal for
food and beverage unit
-Approval ofthe
proposal
-Tendering
-Construction of the unit
-lnspection and

Commissioning

a) Increased and improved infrastructural facilities and enrolment

To enhance
security
survcillance
and safety

Installation of
biometric and
CCTV systems

-Develop a proposal for
installation of biometric,
library security and

CCTV systenrs
-Approval ofthe
Proposal
Tendering
-Installation of
biometric and CCTV
system
Inspection and
commtsstonln

a) Secure environment

To incrcase
and

strengthcn
NENAP

Conduct Skills
gap analysis

-Carry out skills gaP

survey
-Adoption ofskills gap

anal s (

a)
b)
c)

Competent and highly motivated staff
Adequate workforce in the Polytcchnic
Job Security

d Im ance

xv
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human
resource
capacity

-Formulate training and
development needs
-Conduct the training

e)

0
Job satisfaction and security
Team work and team sprit

To enhance
good
governance
and
management
practices

Develop and
implement
governance
policies

-Acquire the relevant
legal documents
-Develop an IT policy
-Develop intemal
quality assurance
-Devclop IGA policy

a) Improved management ofthe polytechnic
b) Efficiency and effectiveness in decision making

To integrate
ICT in all
trrining and
management
operations in
NENAP

Acquire and
utilize and
ERP

-Develop a proposal for
ERP acquisition.
-Approval ofthe
proposal
-Conduct
demonstrations from
interested service
providers
-Tendering
-lnstallation of thc ERP
-Train staff

a) Modernised and inrproved operations in the polytechnic

To promote
research and
innovation in
NENAP

Capacity
building the
research team

-Appointment of
Research committee
-Induction ofthe
research committee
-Develop research team

capacity building work
plan
-Implement the capacity
building work plan

a)
b)
c)

Increase fee collection to 10070

Acquire an updated ERP

Hiring out of facilities

To increase
the
polytechnics
financial base

Operationalise
auto garage

-Register the auto
garage with thc county
governnrent
-Appoint a manager
-Engage qualified
mechanic
Market the Auto garage
-Continuously monitor
operations in the auto
garage

a)
b)

Improved revenuo to the Polytechnic
Eflicient delivery of Pol)4echnic mandate.

To raise the
Polytechnics
profile in the
region

Engage local
leadership and
stakeholders

-Conduct sensitization
forums
-Prepare work plans
-Prepare a budget
- Perform road shows
-Conduct an open day
and career day.

c)
d)
e)

0

Commitment and support of the community
Community change in perception
Raised Polytechnic profi le
lncreased enrollment.

To provide
quality
customer
service

Conduct
customer
satisfaction
survey

-Develop a proposal for
customcr satisfaction
survey consultancy
-Prepare a budget
-Engage the consultancy
firm
-Implement
recommendations from
the custom€r
satisfaction survey.

a) Increased customer base

b) Increased cnrolment.

xvl
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a) Compliance and relcvance

b) Increased donors
-ldentifo the area of
cngagcment
-Preparc a plan
-Implementation ofthe
work plan

To strcngthcn
en8agcmcnts
with county
govcmmcnt,
national
govemments
and NCOs

To strengthen
partnerships,
linkagcs and
col laborstions

a)
b)

Increascd cnrolmcnt
Improved trdincc wclfarc.

Devclop a

proposal for
Cafetcria
s)'stcm
Approval of
thc proposal
Conduct
demonstrations
from intcrested
scrvicc
providers
Tcndering
Installation of
thc cafeteria
systcm
Train staff

Establish a

cafctcria
system

To Improvc
trsincc
wclfarc

Environmental conscrvation
Compliancc with environmental regulations

Conducive environmcnt.

c)
d)
c)

-Develop I wast€
management policy
-Appoint a waste
managcment committce
-Devclop a proposal
-Approval ofa ProPosal
-Prcparc a work Plan
-Prepare a budget

lcment a work-Im an

Wastc
managcment

To improve
thc
Polytechn ics
cnvironment
to makc it
conducivc for
training and
lcaming

6. Corporate Governance Statement

xvll



North Eastern National Polytechnic
Annual Rcpo rt and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

The Polytechnic affirms that good corporate governance is simply good business. The Polytechnic

commits to ensure that we comply with the statutory and all the legal requirements as well as

meeting the set deadlines.

The core mandate of the institution is training as well as carrying out research activities. fhis
entails imparting CBET skills, attitudes and knowledge to the trainees. There are seven (7)

departmenis and basically engineering courses collectively form our centre ofexcellence including

euitaing & Civil Engineering, Electrical & Electronic Engineering, Mechanical & Automotive

Engineering as well as Information Communication Technology.

The cupent student population by the close of the year under review stood at I ,500 We continue

to strive and raise studint enrolment. The teaching staff population is currently 74, supported by

49 non-teaching staff.

During the year under review, the Polyechnic participated in several regional and national

activit]es involving students such as ball games and sports. Senior staff underwent several capacity

building sessions to increase their management skills.

currently, the Polyechnic is partnering with Young Africa works (YAW) Kenya in the areas of
Automoiive and Mechanical Engineering programmes and Applied Research'

The Polytechnic has been a mentoring institution in the construction of the up-coming TVET

institutions. The projects located irr Garissa county are Lagdera, Balambala and Ijara. other

projects are Mandera North, Elwak, Tarbaj, Tana River and Garbatulla'

,,;--l
'lL'. "

S-ho* Fondo Kulama

Principal/Secretary to Governing Council

1. Managcment Discussion and Analysis
The Polytechnic's operational and financial perlormance

(l) The Council commits to ensure that a proper management structure is in place and to make sure that

ihe structure functions to maintain corporate integrity, reputation and responsibility.

xvlll
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(2) The Council has a commitment to monitor and evaluate the implementation of strategies, policies, and

management criteria and plans of North Eastern National Polytechnic.
(3) Thl Council constantiy reviews the viability and financial sustainability ofthe Polytechnic once every

year.
(4; The Council commits to ensure that the North Eastern National Polytechnic complies with all the

ieievant laws, regulations, governance practices, accounting and auditing standards'

Challenges
. In Security in the region has hindered growth in the polytechnic and this has contributed to Low

enrolment in the polytechnic.

. Hardship related issues hinder capacity growth of our staff and this results to low staff moral and

linle or no income generating activities to generate more income to the institution

o Inadequate physical facilities in the poll.technic such as student hostels are some ofthe challenges

relating to low enrolment.

Polytechnic's compliance with statutory requirements

The polytechnic has no court cases at the moment.as at the quarter the polytechnic had complied with the

statutory obligations.

Key projects and investment decisions the Polytechnic is planning/implementing 
-

Uoiiof our projects are financed by majorly by our internal generated revenue, ' However, in the year

under review, there were no projects undertaken'

Major risks facing the Polytechnic

Operational risks in the polytechnic include
. Loss of funds through scrupulous suppliers and service providers providing inferior materials and

services.

Mitigation, Enhanced inspection and monitoring of both works and services'

Risk to loss of funds through downtime on internet and LAN systems'

Mitigation, Signed Maintenance service contract to upgrade the equipment'

Loss ofportable workshop tools and equipment from the workshop stores

Proposai to carry out ass;t registration-and asset tagging to identify tools and equipment from risk

of pilfer and theft.

Material areas in statutory/financial obligations
By the close ofyear in queition, the polyeihnic had some pending bills as indicated but did not have any

loan default or tax default on pension obligations to the exchequer'

The Polytechnic's financial probity and serious governance issues

The polytechnic has management committees and policies are in place to ensure tlrat governance issues

are well-taken care ofSo fai there has not been any conflicts of interest from among tlre council members.

xrx
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8. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting Statement

The Polytechnic affirms that good corporate governance is simply good business. The Polytechnic

commits to ensure that we comply with all the Iegal requirements as well as meeting set deadlines. We

commit to provide excellent training environment for our students who are our major clients.

l. Sustainability strategy and profile -
The core 1nundut" oith" Inititrtion is training as well as carrying out research activities. This

entails impa(ing CBET skills, attitude and knowledge to the trainees. There are six (6)

departmenis and basically engineering courses collectively form our centre for excellence

including Building and Civil Engineering, Electrical and Electronics, Mechanical and Automotive,

Information Communication Technology, Business Studies, Community development and

Secretarial Departments.
2. Environmental performance

We The North Eastern National Polytechnic have planted trees especially the neem trees around

the compound which provide shade for the students, staff and visitors. The trees help to filter out

the dusi and carbon dioxide from the environment hence improving the quality of air that we

breathe inside and around the institution. Despite the Institution being in a semi'arid area, the

management has ensured that there is adequate flowing water for sanitation, consumPtion. And

watering of the trees.

3. Employee rvelfare
The poiytechnic has in place a human resource policy manual which guides it on all issues to do

with human resource. The Policy addresses key areas in human resource such as hiring, appraisals,

training, discipline and dismissal. North Eastern National Polytechnic has qualified staff both in

trainin! and iubordinate staff composed of both nrale and female. To ensure that there is

motivalion and productivity amongst its staff, North Eastern National Polytechnic ensures that its

employees attend regulai workshops and trainings organised by the Institution and other

stakehotders like the National Treasury, Kenya Association Technical Training Institutions

(KATTI.)
4. Market place practices-

The polyiechnic is guided by the TVETA Act, the PFM Act 2015 and the Public Procurement and

Disposai Act 20lJ among other key legislations governing public educational learning

institutions.
We strive to comply all statutory requirements such as ensuring our books are submitted on time,

deducting and remitting olstatutory deductions like PAYE' NSSF, NHIF'
5. Community Engagements-

As part our corporate social responsibility, the polytechnic has equipped a dispensary constructed

by ihe Garissa'Townsh ip CDF with furniture and other fittings like water and electricity. The

Dispensary serves the community from around the polytechnic as well as the students

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

The Polytechnic, built a dispensary within its compound which is managed by the county

Covernment of Garissa. The dispensary server the students and the community around.

9. Report of the Council

The Council members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30,2023 which show the state ofthe polltechnic's affairs'
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The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Polytechnic in accordance with Article

229 of the Constitution ofKenya and the Public Audit Act 2015'
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Show Fondo Kalama
PrincipaUsecretary to Governing Council

Principrl activities

The principal activities ofthe Polytechnic continue to be provision oftechnical and vocational training

Results

The results olthe Polytechnic for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out on page I to page 37

COUNCIL

The members ofthe Council who served during the year are shown on page v'

Auditors

xxl
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10. StatementoftheCouncil'sResponsibilities

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and section 29 ofschedule 2 of the Technical
and Vocational Education and Training Act, 2013 require the council members to prepare financial
statements in respect of that Polytechnic, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Polytechnic at the end of the financial yearlperiod and the operating results of the Polytechnic for that
yearlperiod. The council members are also required to ensure that the Polytechnic keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position ofthe Polyechnic. The
council members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe Polytechnic.

The council members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Polyechnic's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Polytechnic for and as at the end of
the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position ofthe Polytechnic; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements, and ensuring that they are free
from material misstatements, wlrether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the
Polyechnic; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The council members accept responsibility for the Polytechnic's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and

estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner

required by lhe Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and Vocational Education and

Training Act, 2013. The council members are of the opinion that the Polytechnic's financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of Polyechnic's transactions during the financial year ended June 30,

2023, and of the Polyechnic's financial position as at that date. The council members lurther confirm the

completeness ofthe accounting records maintained for the Polfechnic, which have been relied upon in the

preparation of the Polyechnic's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal

financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the council members to indicate that the Polytechnic will not remain a
going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement.

Approval of the financial statements

\ \- \ )-\?,
The Polytechnic's financial statements were signed on
by:

on behalf of the Goveming Council

,\.1
Name..l....\
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Name... :) r'.17;.{.:i.../ .l::'|Lr)zt' LtJ'

e-l
Signature...
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Signature....
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Chairperson of the Council
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Principal
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON NORTH EASTERN NATIONAL
POLYTECHNIC FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide intemal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot lhe Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of North Eastern National
Polytechnic set out on pages 1 to 43, which comprise of the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in

Repert o/lhe Auditor-General on Norlh Eastern Netional Polytechnicfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023



net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the North Eastern National Polytechnic as at
30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act,2012 andtheTechnical and Vocational
Education and Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

l. Unsupported Expenditure on Repairs and Maintenance

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements, reflects a balance of Kshs.4, 1 17,1 95 in respect of repairs and maintenance
of property, motor vehicles and machinery. Review of payment records and other
supporting documents provided for audit revealed that an expenditure amounting to
Kshs.'l ,892,735 was not supported with procurement records such as request for
quotations, appointments of evaluation and opening committee, evaluation and opening
committee minutes, inspection and acceptance committee report, pre and post inspection
reports for repair of motor vehicles.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of expenditure amounting to
Kshs.1,892,735 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Transfers to Mentored lnstitutions

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements, reflects grants and subsidies balance of Kshs.25,083,000 in respect to
transfers to mentored institutions. Review of the records revealed that, included in the
balance were transfers to Garbatula Technical lnstitute of Kshs.7,500,000 for construction
of workshop block and Kshs.17,500,000 transferred to Mandera North Technical
Vocational College for erection and completion of twin workshop classrooms and office
blocks. However, the Management did not provide for audit the cash books, bank
statements, procurement records for drilling of borehole, ofiice blocks, construction and
completion of automotive engineering workshop block at Garbatula Technical Training
lnstitute. ln the absence of expenditure returns and other relevant documents, it was not
possible to confirm whether funds transferred to the mentored institutions were utilised
for the intended purpose.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of transfers amounting to
Kshs.25,083,000 could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-Cenerql on North Easlern Nalionql Polytechnicfor lhe year ended 30 June. 2023
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3. Unsupported Council Expenses

The statement of financial performance and as reflected in Note 12 to the financial
statements reflects Council expenses amount of Kshs.699,000. Review of the
expenditure records provided for audit revealed that Kshs.200,000 paid to the Council
Members for transport was not supported with travel documents like bus tickets or motor
vehicle work tickets.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and validity of expenditure amounting
to Kshs.200,000 on Council expenses could not be confirmed.

4. Unsupported Boarding Equipment and Stores

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services amount of Kshs.30,762,449 which further
includes Kshs.4,416,575 in respect of boarding equipment and stores. However, review
of the payment records and other supporting documents revealed that stores amounting
to Kshs.3,032,085 were not received vide counter receipt vouchers (S13) and thus not
possible to confirm the actual deliveries. Further, there was no inspection and acceptance
committee to confirm compliance with the terms and specifications of the contract as
required by Section 48(1) and 3(b) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Act, 2015.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and validity of expenditure amounting
to Kshs.3,032,085 on boarding equipment could not be confirmed.

5. Unsupported Travel and Accommodation Expenses

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services amount of Kshs.30,762,449 which includes
Kshs.4,798,000 incurred on travelling and accommodation allowances. Review of
expenditure records provided for audit revealed that payments amounting to
Kshs.2,530,100 lacked supporting documents such as duly attendance registers for the
training and workshops attended, back to work reports, proof of travel such as work
tickets, bus tickets, request and approvals for the training, invitation letters and
nomination letters to attend the training. ln addition, the Management paid Kshs.2,800
each for fifteen (15) staff who attended various training/workshops in Nairobi as a travel
allowances. No proper explanation was provided as to why the SRC Circular No.
SRC/ADM/CIR11113(122) of 2014 was not adhered to on accommodation rates.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and validity of expenditure amounting
to Kshs.2,572,100 on travel and accommodation expenses could not be confirmed.

6. Long Outstanding Student Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects a total receivables balance of
Kshs.55,038,478, consisting of current receivables from exchange transactions (student
debtors) of Kshs.17,454,614, receivables from non-exchange transactions (Government
capitation) of Kshs.15,187,500 and long term receivables from exchange transactions
(student debtors) of Kshs.22,396,364. This is an increment of Kshs.24,285,725 from prior
year's balance of Kshs.30,752,753. lt was not clear why the Management of the
Polytechnic allowed for receivables to accumulate to such high figures given their annual

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on North Eastern National Polytechnic for the yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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approved budget totaled to Kshs.52,955,700. The Management failed to put in place debt
management policies to assist in timely collection of student debts.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the receivables
amounting to Kshs.55,038,478 could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Property, Plantand Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.1 ,565,674,680 and as disclosed under Note 2'l to the financial statements.
According to the valuation report, the Polytechnic sits on 66.7 acres of land but the
Management did not provide ownership documents for the land. ln addition, procurement
file for a new motorcycle worth Kshs.145,300 was not availed for audit and thus not
possible to confirm whether the procurement law was adhered to while purchasing the
motorcycle. Further, the Polytechnic has not transferred the ownership of the motorcycle
to its own name.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, ownership and completeness of property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.1,565,674,680 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). lam independent of the North Eastern National Polytechnic
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1.0 Budgetary Control and Performance

1.1 Revenue Budget

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects the final revenue
budget for the year under review of Kshs.52,955,700. However, actual amount collected
during the year was Kshs.54,608,089 over and above by Kshs.1,652,389 or 103o/o and
this was as a result of unexpected income from rendering of services, sale of goods and
other income as analyzed below:

Revenue

Budget
2022t2023

(Kshs.)

Actual
2022t2023

(Kshs.)

Performance
Difference
2022t2023

(Kshs.) Utilization
Capitation Grants 44,129,000 21 ,978,200 22,150,800 50o/o

Rendering of Services - Fees
from Students

8,826,700 25,659,339 16,832,639 190o/o

Sale of Goods 0 137,500 137,500

Other lncome 0 6,833,050 6,833,050

Total lncome 52,955,700 54,608,089 (r,652,389) 103%

Reporl of lhe Audilor-Aeneral on North Edstern Nqtionql Polylechnic for lhe yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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The above analysis indicates 50% as un-realized capitation grants

1.2 Expenditure Budget

The Polytechnic's total budgeted expenditure amounted to Kshs.46,504,700 against total
actual expenditure of Kshs.53,943,119 resulting to net over expenditure of
Kshs.7,438,41 9 as summarized below:

Item/Expenditure

Budget
2022t2023

(Kshs.)

Actual
2022t2023

(Kshs.)

Performance
Oifference
2022t2023

(Kshs.) Utilization
Use of Goods and Services 25,904,700 30,762,449 G.857.749\ <18.5o/o

Employee Costs 17,000,000 18,364,475 (1,364,475) <8o/o

Council Expenses 1,500,000 699,000 801,000 >53o/o

Repairs and Maintenance 2,100,000 4,117,195 (2,017,195) <960/o

Total Expenditure 46,504,700 53,943,'119 7,438,419 <160/0

The Management overspent its budget by Kshs.7,438,419 contrary to Section 55(2) (f) of
the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which
requires steps to be taken to ensure that projected expenditure and revenue are within
the budget.

The Management was therefore in breach of the law.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those mafters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matter

ln the audit of the previous year, several issues were raised under the report of the
Auditor-General. However, Management has not resolved the issues as at 30 June, 2023.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on Norlh Easlern Nqtional Polytechniclor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023
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Basis for Conclusion

lrregular Procurement of lnsurance Services

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services of
Kshs.30,762,449 and as disclosed under Note 10 to the financial statements. This amount
includes Kshs.446,515 in respect of lnsurance. Review of records provided for audit
revealed that the Polytechnic procured insurance services from an lnsurance Agency for
a Group Life Assurance Policy to cover three hundred and forty five (345) students, Group
Personal Accident Policy for two hundred and twenty tour (224) students and lnsurance
Policy for motor vehicles at a cost of Kshs.446,515. However, a contract agreement as
required by Section 135(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 201 5 was
not provided for audit. Although services were procured through direct procurement,
there was no documentary evidence to prove that the procurement met the conditions set
out in Section 103 of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act, 2015 for direct
procurement.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me
to believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not
effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

Repo of the Auditor-Gener.ll on North Edslern Nationdl Pol)lechnicfor lhe )'ear ended 30 June, 2023
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ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Polytechnic's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Polytechnic or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Polytechnic's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

Report ofthe Audilor-Oeneral on North Eastern National Polytechnicfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
Polytechnic's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Polytechnic's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Polytechnic to
cease to continue to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Polytechnic to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

Report o/ the Auditor-General on North Eastern National Polytechnic for the yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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t
I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCP cBs
AUDITORGENERAL

Nairobi

03 January,2024

Report of the Auditor4eneral on North Eastem National Polyrecluic lor lhe year ended 30 June, 202 3
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North Eastern National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

Revenue from Non-Exchrnge trensections

6Transfers from other National Government entities 46,978,200 70,987,500

46,978,200 70,987,500

Revenue from Exchenge transactions

Rendering ofservices- fees from students 7 23,083,106 33,330,900

Sale ofgoods 8 137,500 770,000

Miscellaneous income 9 6,833,050 3,643,791

Revenue from Exchange transactions 30,053,656 37,744,691

Total Revenue 77,031,856 108,732,191

Erpenses

Use ofgoods and services l0 30,762,449 28,629,t8s

Employee costs ll t8,364,475 18,289,300

Council Expcnses l2 699,000 1,629,300

Depreciation and amortization expense l3 9t,752,239 32,353,329

t4Rcpairs and maintenance 4,117,195 2,009,900

Grans and subsidies l5 25,083,000 48,626,400

t6General Expenses 400,280

Total Erpenses I70,778,358 131,934,694

Net surplus/(delicit) for the year (93,746,502) (23,202,503)

12. Statement ofFinancial Performance for The Yesr Ended 30 June 2023

(Ihe notes set out on pages 7 to 58 form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements)

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 6 were signed by:

).'14-l<J'

Chairman of Council/Board Finance Officer

ICPAK No t ,,}-(l'?-s-

Date \\'* \?-- 2-o-3

Principal
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North Eastern National Polytechnic
Annual Re rt and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

13. Statement of Financial Position As At30th June 2023

Asseb

Current Assets

2,639,105l7 6,708,657Cash and cash equivalents

21,20s,25317,454,614l8
Cunent portion ofreceivables from exchange

transactions
9,547,50015,187,50028 (a')Receivables from non-exchange transactions

99,30067,80020Inventories

33,491,15839,418,571Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

27(b) 22,396,364[.ong term receivables from exchange transactions

1,6s6,183,6811,s65,674,6802lProperty, plant, and equipment

3,29s,60022 2,589,400Intangible assets

1,659,479,281r,s90,660,444Tot l Non-Current Assets

r,692,970,4391,630,079,015Total Assets

Lisbilities

Current Liabilities

4,298,4763,983,827
23

Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

4,458,6726,125,64923Payments received in advance

25 2,500,000Cunent portion of borrowings

8,757,14812,609,476Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
700,000l,300,00025Non- Current Borowings
700,0001,300,000Total non- curretrt liabilities

9,457,14813,909,476Totgl Liabilities

1,683,523,2911,616,169,539Net Assets

I,149,362,8881,149,362,888Revaluation Reserves
(60,6s8,827)(154,405,329)Accumulated Surplus
594,819,230621,2tr,980Capital Fund

1,683,523,29I7,616,169,539Totel Net Assets and Liabilities
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Annuel Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

Thc Financial StatemenB sct out on pagcs xx to xx were signcd by:

Chelrman of Councll/Board F'lnence Olficer

ICPAKNo \FVll-s

Date \\ -\'l-1r"13

Princlpal

Date \\F DeCo.---S,- ar13ort" 12trlqg 43
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North Eastern National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial StatementE for the year ended 30th June 2023
14. Statement of Changes in Net Asset For The Year Ended 30 June 2023

At Ju 1 2021 1,149,362,899 Q7,456)24) 594,819130 1,706,725,794
Revaluation

ezuS luV deficit for the Q3202,s03) (23,202,503)
At June 30 2022 l,l4g ,888 (60,658,827) 594,819,230 ,523291I

At Ju 2022 l,L4g 2,888 (60,658,827) 594,819130 I ,523291
Revaluation

lus/S deficit for the (93,746,s02) 26,392,7s0 ,3s3,7s2)(
At June 30 2023 1,149i62,888 (154,405i329) 621?tL,980 1,616,169539

Note:
t. Capital Fund includes Kshs 25,000,000 receivedfor the construction ofmentored instituitions
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15. Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended 30 June 2023

(PSISR has prescribed the direct method ofcosh.flov, preryralion and pretentotion/or oll public seclot 2enlilies repo ing under

the IPSAS Accnol bdsit o/accounling)

Cash flows from oDeratins activities
Receipts

70,987,50046,978,200Transfers from other National Government
entities

22,034,6102s,659,339Rendering of services- fees from students
770,000137,500Sale ofsoods
320,9006,833,0s0Miscellaneous income

94,113,01079,608,089Total ReceiDts

Payments
29,473,s0029,8n,481Use of goods and services
r 8,289,30018,364,47sEmployee costs
1,626,3N699,000Council Expenses
2,009,9003,543,535Repairs and maintenance

25,083,000 48,626,400Grants and subsidies
400,280General Expenses

77,501,497 (r00,42s,680)Total Payments
6,312,670\46 2,106,592Net Cash Flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

(280,000)(537,040)Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment and
intangible assets

(s37,040) (280,000)Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from Iinancing activities
3.200.0002,500,000Proceeds From Borrowing

(2.500.000)Repayment Of Borrowings
700,0002,500,000Net cash flows used in financing aclivities

4,069,552 (s,892,670)Net Increose(Decrease) in Cash and Cash
equivalents

8.531,77526 2,639,105Cash and Cash equivalens at I JULY
2,639.r0s26 6,708,657Cash and Cash equivalents at 30 JUNE
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North Eastern National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statemenk for the year ended 30th June 2023
16. Ststement of Comparison of Budget&Actual amounb For Year Ended 30 Juae 2023

Revenue Kshs Kshs IGhs Kshs Kshs o/"

Capitation grants 44,129,000 44,129,000 21,978,200 (22,1s0,800) 50.1o/o
Rendering ofservices- fees from students 8,826,700 8,826,700 25,659,339 16,832,639 190o/o
Sale ofgoods 137,500 137,500 100%
Miscellaneous lncome 6,833,050 6,833,050 100o/o

Total Income 52,955,700 52,955,700 54,608,089 1,652,389 3%

Ex enses

Use of goods and services 25,904,700 25,904,700 30,762,449 (4,857,749) t8%
Employee costs 17,000,000 17,000,000 18,364,475 (r,364,475) 8%
Council Expenses 1,500,000 1,500,000 699,000 801,000 53.4%
Repairs and maintenance 2,100,000 2,100,000 4,117,195 (2,017,19s) 196%
Total Ex enditure 46,504,700 46,504,700 53,943,119 (7,438,419)

Su us For the Period 6,451,000 6,451,000 664,970 (s,786,030)
Ca iture

(Budget notes)

l. The capitation grants were Paid at Kshs 4000 per student rather than the anticipated Kshs 7,500, also the fowth quarter
capitation had not been disbursed as at 3f June 2023

2' Rendering of Services was higher collection than atlticipated due to payments from HELB, County, NGCDFs and Ward bursaries
ond other spottsors which came a long way in improving the collectio;

3' The difference in Sale of goods and Miscellaneous Income was brought by the fact that the GMIS system which is used to prepare
the budgets for WETs has no provisionfor IGAs (Income Generatiig ,l,itivitiis hence they are eitier lumped under Capitation
grants or rendering of services.

4. The variance in use of goods_was, brought about by the sharp increase in prices of commodities due to high inflation rates
especially in the second half of the FY.
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North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

17. Notes to the Financial Statements

General Information
xxx entity is established by and derives its authority and accountability from xxx Act. The entity is wholly owned by the Government of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity,s principal activity is xxx.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items ofproperty' plant and equipment, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable
amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational
Public sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement
in the process of applying lhe entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note xx. The financial statements have been prepared
and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and reporting curency of the entity. The values are rounded off to the nearest
shilling'The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act, the TVET Act, (include
any othq applicable legislation), and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been
consistently applied to all the years presented.

I

.,
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North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Adoption of Nery and Revised Standards

l. Relevant nerv standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Applicable: lst January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to u

9

IPSAS 4l: Financial Instruments

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to estabtish principles for the financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities
that will present relevant and useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the
amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity,s future cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information than IpSAS 29, by:

' Applying a single classihcation and measurement model for financial assets that considers the
characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

' Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is applicable to all financial
instruments subject to impairment testing; and

an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging anangements in scope of
e. The model develops a strong rink between an Entity's risk management strategies and the
treatment for instruments held as part ofthe risk management strategy.
the standard to the Entit!)

Applicable: lst January 2023:

. Applying
the guidanc

accounting
(State the impact of

IPSAS 42: Social Benefits

The objective of this standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness and comparability of the
information that a reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The information
provided should help users of the financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:
(a) The nahre of such social benefis provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and
(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial performance, financial position and
cash flows.

Applicable:1 January 2023

tiy if rcleya t)(Stdte the impact of lhe standdrd to the En
Amendments to
resulting from

Other IPSAS

IPSAS 41, pdate the guidance related to the components of borrowing costs - ':h



North EasternNational Polytechnic
AnnuaI ort and financigl Statementr for the r ended 30th June 2023

ll. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended 30 June 2023.

Financial Instruments

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedgng and crcdit risk which were
inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for financial guaranteed conmcts
which were inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

to update the guidance on classifuing financial instruments on initial
AS which were inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.
Entity if relevant)

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d)

(State t

Amendments to IpSAS 33,
adoption of accrual basis IpS

he impdct of the stdndard to the
vements to IPSASOther impro

' IPSAS.22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government seclor. Amendments to referto the latest System ofNational Accounts (SNA 200g).o 'IPSls j9: Employee Benefits. Norv deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longerdefined in IPSAS.

Applicable January 2023

iustru ti incl
whi Januaryof tf

IPsAs 92 F' am cialn m eRtsen no dan Meas eur mcognr e tn Standard no uded ln thelonger)023 SAIP s handbook 1ils lst stno su eded b SASIP 14 chpers a1S cab e frompp 20 3)
ale,s, hI e ct eth slandard totmpa tlre En relevanltitl

IPSAS 43

T: *auta sets out the principles. for the recopition, measuement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. Theobjective is to ensue that lessees and lessors provilde relevant information in a mamer that faitbfrlly represetrts thosetransactions' This information gives a basis foi users of financial statements to *r"s trr" effect that leases have on thefinancial position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
P:..ry* standard requires entities to recognise, measure and iresent information on right of use assets and leaseliabilities.

Applicable l't fanuary 2025

rclevantIthe sfimdard lo the Ened act oSlate the
IPSAS 44: Non-
Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued
Operations

The Standard requires,
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair valueless costs to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Applicable lanuary 2025

ified as held for sale to beAssets that meet the criteria to be class statement. of financialed se atel in the

:riiiitrt,,! iii'' 1nlrl:(,.,

l0
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ut. Early adoption of standards

North Eastem National Polytechnic did not early-adopt any new or amended standards irt year 2022123.

ti di tin ti
State tlt h levant

so no theand tsresul fop scon oued nso bto e tedn spera tel lnprese the stateepara men ot f financ al Imanceperfoe cle de ,m ca t o ht e standard ot t e tEn re

11



North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Re ort and F inancial Statemen ts for the year ended 30th June 20234.S ummar? of Significant Accounting policies

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of theasset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfe-r is free from 
"onaition. 

*Jii is probable that the ecoiomic benefits or service potentialrelated to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. To the ext"nt thut there is a related condition attached that would give riseto a liability to repay the amoun! the amount is recorded in the statement or n.*"i"i'p"r-ron and realised i, trr".t i"r*"t of financial performanceover the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.

iD Revenue from exchange transactions

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Rendering of services

Interest income

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when the outcome of the transaction can beestimated reliably' The stage of completion ii measured by reference to labour hJrr.s i.r"u..ed to date as a percentage of total estimated labour
1"".H;.#:'" 

the contract outcome cannot be *.^*"d reliably,.";;;;';"""gnizea ody to tte "xi"nrttui,h".,,p.^., incurred are

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually ondelivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue 
"an-b" 

m"usu."d reliably, 
""a 

i, i. probabli that the economic benefits or service potentialassociated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income eachperiod.

12



The original budget for FY 2022/2023 was approved by the council or Board on 28/01/2.022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriationswere made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the upp.opriut" authorities. rne Jaitionat appropriations are addedto the original budget by the entity upon receiving the'respectivl approvals to 
"orr"tua" 

the final budget.. The entity,s budget is prepared on adifferent basis to the actual income and expendituie discloied in the financial statements. The financiai stur...* 
-ui" 

prepared on accrual basisusing a classification based on the nature oi 
"*p"nr.. 

in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on cash basis. Theamounts in the financial statements *et" .."^i from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis asthe approved budget' A comparison ofbudget and actual u.o.yf, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in thestatement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis diffeience, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements arealso made for differences in the formats and classification schemes 
_adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approvedbudget' A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amountsand the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been presented on pug" o *a.r section xxx of these frnancial statements.

North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

Rental income

[]}fiJ:*,n" 
arising from operating leases on investrnent properties is accounted for on a straightJine basis over the lease terms and included in

b) Budget information

c) Taxes

Current income tax
The entity is exempt from paying taxes as per schedule xrx of the xxx Act.

Sales tax/ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ofsales tax, except:

F when the sales tax incuned on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax isrecognized as part ofthe cost ofacquisition of the asset or as part ofthe expense item, as applicable.
F when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

13
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North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3()th June 2023
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
financial position.

to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivabl es or payables in the statement of

d) Investment property
lnvestrnent properties are measured initially at cos! including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components
of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day+o-day
maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of
acquisitioa Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties arc measured using the cost model and are depreciated over an xx-year periodor investment proPerty is measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised through surplus or deficit.(entity to amend
appropriatel)'lnttestrnent properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from
investment property only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. cost includes expendihre that is directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the item of property appropriately according to the acronyms you use in your financial statements
plant and equipment' when sigrificant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recog:nized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in surplus, or deficit as incurred. where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal
consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held
under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value ofthe
futt[e minimum lease payments. The Entity also recogr.izes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The tiability recognized is
measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initiat recognition. Subsequent to initial recognifisn, lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life
of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of th. l"*" term, the asset is

t4



North EasternNational polytechnic
Annual Re ort and Financial Statements for the ear ended 30th June 2023
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantiallyall the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recogrized as an operatingin surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fairvalue at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization andaccumulated impairment losses' Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized deveropment costs, are not capitalized and expenditureis reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finiteor indefinite' Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are assessed for impairment at each reporting date.

expense

h) Research and devetopment costs

r;*t*Yr:I'"nses 
research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can

) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale.
) Is intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

F How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential
) The availability of resources to complete the asset.

F The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete, aad the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period ofexpected futurebenefit' During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately insurplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedgeaccounting and a new impairment model for financial assets. Ilre entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore rhe new hedgeaccounting rules have no impact on the company's financial statements. (amend as appropriate). A financial instrument is any contract that gives

15
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nse to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recogni tion, the entity measures a
financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or min in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value throughus
surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directty attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liabi

Financial assets

ClassiJication

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value tkough net assets/ equity or fair value through
surplus and deficit on the basis of both the entity's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset' A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held within a management model whose objective is to
hold hnancial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principat and interest on the principal outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/
equity if it is held within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and selling financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on theprincipal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost orfair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investrnents in equity
instruments-

Subsequent measurement
Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial
assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair value are presented in either surplus or deficit or
through net assets/ equity subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortized cost
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments ofprincipal and interest, and
that are not designated at fair value through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is subsequently
measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized o. i1npuir.j.
Interest income from these frnancial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

16
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Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets, cash flows representsolely payments ofprincipal and interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken throughnet assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized insurplus/deficit. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.Fair value through surplus or deficit
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity are measured at fair value through surplus ordeficit' A business model where the entity manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the assetswould result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed forimpairment on a continuing basis' An estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

Impairment

Financial liabilities

Clossi/ication
The entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities measured through profit or loss

j) Inventories

The entity assesses' on a forwardJooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with its financial assets carried at amoftized cost andfair value through net assets/equity' The entity recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. criticar estimates and significantjudgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss @cL) are set out in Nore xr.

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost orfor a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

F Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

17
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) Finished goods and work il progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal
operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is
distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lower ofcost and current replacement cost

Inventories (Continued)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coruse of operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary cor]Ise of operations of the Entiry.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Erriry has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past event, it is probable that an out{low of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented
in the statement of financial perlormance net of any reimbursement.

C o nting e nt I iab ilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assels

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-
occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not v/holly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent
assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virnrally certain
that an inllow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue

are recognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.
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l) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet the eligibility criteria" ii) mitigate the effects of

social risks and iii) Address the need of society as a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social beneflt scheme at the

same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit

payments) that the entity will incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

m) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. (Entity to state the rderves maintained and appropriate policies

adopted).

n) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied

prospectively if rekospective application is impractical.

o) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

T111e Entity provides rettement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which

an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the

fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to

fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans

are poslemployment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the

projected unit credit method basis. Defrcits identified are recovered tkough lump sum payments or increased future contributions on proportional

basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation'

p) Foreign currency transactions
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Transactions in foreigrt currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtorsdenominated in forelgn curency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange mte on that date.Exchange differences ansrng from the settlement of creditors, or ftom the reporting of credi tors at rates different from those at which they wereinitially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or conskucted and borrowings have been incurred.capitalization ceases when construction ofthe asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial perfonnance.
r) Related parties

Tlte Entity rcgards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influenceover the Entity' or vice versa' Members of key management are regarded as related parties and 
"o*piir" the directors, the principal and seniormanagers.

s) Setviceconcessionarrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining the appropriate accounting treatment anddisclosure requirements' In particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement , rhe Entity recogrttzes that asset when, and onlywhen' it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. Inthe case of assets other than 'whole-ofJife' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residualinterest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has beenrecognized, the Enriry also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an originalmaturity of tkee months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.Bank account balances include amounts held at the central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financiai year. For thepurposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers
and./or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.
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u) Comparative ligures

where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in
presentation.

v) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
5. Signilicant Judgments and Sources ofEstimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reportingperiod' However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount ofthe asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity basedits assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances
and assumptions about fufure developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IpSAS 1.140

Useful Iives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment of experts employedby rtre Entity.
The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes.
The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.
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lity of funding to replace the asset.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates ofprovisions is included in Note )oo(.

Provisions are measured at ttre management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and arediscounted to present value where the effect is material.

(Include provisions applicable for your organisation e.g. provision for bad debts, provisiors of obsolete stocks and how management estimdtes
these provisions) -
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Notes to the f inancial Statements (Continued)

6. Transfers from other National Government entities

Rendering of Services
a) f,'ees Payable

7

Unconditional Grants

itation Grants 17,645,000 22,987,500
o Grant 4,333,200

Gran8 for Mentored Institutions 25,000,000 48,000,000
Total unconditional Grants 46918200 70p87500
Total Government Granb rnd SubsidiB 46978?00 70,987,500

Tuition Fees 14,000,658 33,330,900
Activity Fees 322,716
Boarding fees 2,859,415
Contingency fees 648,747
EWC- Fees 1,030,029
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8. Sale of Goods

9. Misce[aneous lncome

Hire of Facilities 137,500 770,000
Total Revenue from Sale of Goods r37500 770,000

Production income 6,823,050 3,643,791
Income from sale of tender 10,000

Total other ilcome 6,833,050 3,643,791
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629,6M
Intemet fees s10203
LTT fee,s 976,970
Medical fees 532,780

PE fees 619,741

Repairs aod Mainte,nance fees 814,323

Student Council fees 137,y20
Total Revenue frorn The Rendering of Serrices 23,083,106 33,390p00

Annual ort and tr'inencial Statements for the ear ended 30th June 2023
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10. Use ofGoods and Services

Utilities and Supplies 63t,377 2,642,207
Industrial attachment costs 820,600 538,500

ent and StoresBo tu 4,4t6,575 7,376,990
Elecfici Water and Co 1,563,056

and accommodationTrave 4,798,000 5,945,321
Fuel and oil 433,100 661,096
lnsurance M6,515 551,108
Intemet 650,820 638,104
Production 1,714,688 262,475
Re on 261,100
School based 452,875
Tuition 4,219,4t0 2,123,21r
Admission es 263,800
Dri 148,300 67,600
Acti 7,273,567 4,055,038
Con 1,460,041 2,789,760
Consumable stores 246200

cash utilizedP 439,900

Examination related 1,500,300

Total od and services 30..762,U9 28,629,185
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11. Employee Costs

12. Council Expenses

13. Depreciation and Amortizatior erpense

Salaries and 17,155,562 17,785,492
contributi mediEm related costs op oyee tons ns and cal nssfpenslo (

812,703 503,808

PAYE 396,210
CostsEm t8,364,475 18,299,300

Council

Total

lant and 91,046,039 31,647,129
blc assets 706200 706200

reciatiou and amo rtizationTotal d 9t,752239 32353329
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14. Repairs and Maintenance

Notes To the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Grants and Subsidies

Social benefit schemes include benefits such as cash transfers for
16. General Expenses

unemployment or elderly in line with IPSAS 42.

Motor vehicles atrd 4 lt7 195 9 00
and MaintenanceTotal 4,ll7,lg5 2,009,900

Transfers to Mentored Institutions 25,083,000 48,626,400
Total Grants end Subsidies 25,093,000 48,626,400

General
400,280

Total
400280
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l7- Cash and Cash Equivalenb

26 (a). Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash equivalents

Current Account 6,692,213 2,621,395
On- Call D Develo Accountslts 17,710
Total Cash and Cash uivalents 6,709,657 2,639,105

a) Current Account

Commercial Bank 1107801818 6,6922t3 2,621,39s
Coumercial BankKen 1107469619 16,444 17,710

Sub- Total 6,709,657 2,639,105
Grand Total 6,709,657 2,639,105
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18. Receivables from Exchange transactions

27 (a) Current Receivables from Exchange transactions

27 (b) Ageing Analysis of Receivables from Erchange transactions

Current Receivables

Student Debtors

Total Current Receivable.s

I and below

Totd s+b

Above I

Current FY 7o of the total Comparative
FT 7o of the total

17,454,6t4 43.8% 21,20s253 100Yo
22,396,364 56.20/o %
39,850p78 100Y" 2t?0s2s3 100"/0
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28 (b) Reconciliation for Impairment Allowance on Receivables from Non-Erchange Transactions

At tlie of the 9,547,500 )oo(
Additional the )oo(
Recovered the )oo(
Wriucn of d the )oo(
At the end ofthe xl:r

20. Inventories

Consumable stores 67,800 99 00
allowanceLess

Total Inventories at lower of Cost rnd Net Realizable Value 67,800 99,300
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19. Receivables from Non-Erchange transactions

(*Receivables on capitation grants are recognisedfor monies received after year end but relating to the year under review).

28 (a) Ageing Analysis on Receivables from Non-Erchange Transactions

Current Receivables

on Grants* 5,640 000 9,547 00
Total Current Receivables

Current FY
oh of th
total

Comparative
F'Y

7o of the total

1 year and below 5,640,000 37% 9,547,500 l00o/o
Betweeo 1- 2 years 9,547,500 63Y"
Total 15,187,500 1000/o 9,547,500 100%
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21. Property, Plant and Equipment

At lJuly 2021 (previous
Additions

280,000,000 418"360,193 5,440,000 4,754,700

280 000

3,82s,836 1,006,797,609 I 719,178 39
280 000Disposals

Transfers/Adj ustments

tousAt 30 Jrune 2022 280 00 00 4r8 60 193 40 00 4 754 700 364 105 09I 006 797 I 39719 458Additions
Dis

55,000 145,300 255,500 81,240 537 040

Transfer/Adjustments

At 30 uffentJune 2023 280 000 00

G)

418 415 193 5 00 005

C)

10 4 187 076

G)

t 0900 797 I 79719 995

G)

0"/" l20h t2.sv" 20o/o 8Y.
Depreciation And Impairment

fevn usAt I Jul z02t
De tion
D osals

0 18 010
0 918 0t0

136 000
t36 000

37 73
231 735 67,808

67 t0 067
t0 067 97

9I
1

7
7 2

At 30 Jun 2022 (previous year)

lrmentIm

De tion
Di osals

8,368 304

4r,m6,020

670 36

272,000

626 275

475,470

837 415

555,217 20,135,952

80 543 809 91,046 039

63274,6s8

Impairment
Transfer/Ad ustment
At ntJun 2023 curre s0204,324 942236 1,101,,745 r392,632 100 79 761 8154 20Net Book Values

At 30rt Jun 2022 (;trevious year) 280,000,000 376,524,173 s,168,000 4279230 3,550,619 986,661,6s7 1,656,183,681
At 30 Jun 2023 urrenl 280,000,000 368,210,869 4,643,064 3,908,455 2,794,444 906,117,848 1,565,674,680
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Valugtion

As per National Treasury guidelines, Land and buildings were identified and valued as per the
National Liabilities and Management Policy and guidelines (Issued June 2020).

3l (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If tho frcchold land, buildings and other assets wer€ stated on the historical cost basis the amoun8
would be as follows:

22. Intangiblc Assets

280,000,000 280,000,000Land

418,415,193 50,204,324 368,210,869Buildings

100,679,761 906,117,848Plant And Machinery l,@6,797,609

942,236 4,643,064Motor Vehicles including Motorcycles 5,585,300

1,392,632 2,794,444Computers and Related Equipment 4,1E7,076

I,101,745Office Equipment, Furniture, And Fittings 5,010,200 3,908,455

Lil320,698 1565,674fi80Total 1,719,995579

Cost

At beeinnine of the vear 4,708,000 4,708,000

Additions
4,708,000 4,708,000At end of the year

Additions-intemal development

4,708,000At end of the year 4,708,000

Amortization and impairment
1,412,400 706,200At beginning of the year

706,200 706,200Amortization
2,118,600 1,412,400At end of the year

Impairment loss

1,412,400At end of the year 2,1 r 8,600

2,589,400 3,295,600NBV

'li)'.'".: .-);

, ii.l i'
.il-r,r,1rriir)rr
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23. Trade and Other Payables

24. Pnyments received in advance.

Trade payables 3,983,827 4,298,476
Fees paid in advance 6,12s,649 4,458,672

Total Trade and Other Payables 101109,476 8,757,148

Ageing analysis:
Current FY

oh of
the

Totel
Comparative FY

o/o of
the

Total
Under one year 5,678,800 56% 8,757,t48 100%
l -2 years 4.430.676 44%

Total (to tie to totals above) 10,109,476 1000/" 8,757,148 100%

Fees received in advance 6,125,649 4,458,672
Total 6,125,649 4,458.672

Ageiug nnalvsis:

Current
F'Y

Yo of
the

Total
Comparative FY

o/" of
the

Total
Under one year 6,t25,649 100% 4,458,672 l00o/o
t-2 years -% -%
Total 6,r25,649 100y" 4,458,672 100Y.
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25. Borrowings

43 b) Breakdorvn ofLong and Short-Term Borrowings

1,300,000Balance at beqinning ofthe year

2,500,000 3200,000Inter entity borrowings

(2,s00,000)Repayments of inter cntity borrowings during the
year

700,0003,800,000Balance at end ofthe year

3,500,0003,800,000Inter entity borrowing
700,0003,800,000Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

26. Cash generated from operations.

Surplus for the year before tax (93,746,s02) Q3,202,s03)
Adjusted for:

Depreciation 91,752,239 32,353,329

Non-Cash grants received G) G)

Contributed assets C) G)

Impainnent

Gains and Losses on Disposal of Assets G) G)

Contribution to provisions

Contribution to impairment allowance

Finance Income G)

Finance Cost

Workin e Capital Ad.iustments

Increase in Inventory 3 1,500 G)

Increase in Receivables r,810,806 (17,802,771)

Increase in Payables

Decrcase in Payables 1,640,008

Increase in Payments received in advance 1,666,977

Increase in borrowings 700,000

Net Cash Florv from Onerating Activities 2,106,592 (6,312,670)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27. Financial Risk Management

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign curency. The company's overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

O Crcdit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counte{party will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investnents.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated
by
the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the cunent
economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account ofthe value ofany collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

ry
At 30 Jtne 2022 revrous ear

reil g
21,205,253

Receivables from exchange
transactions

21,205,253

9,547,500 9,547,500
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

Bank balances 2,621,395 2,62t,395

33,374,148 33,374,148Total

At 30 Junc 2023 (currcnt ycar)

39,850,978
Receivables from exchange
transactions

39,850,978

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

l 5,l 87,500 t 5,l 87,500

6,708,6s7 6,708,657Bank balances

61,747,135Total 61,747,135
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Financial risk management (continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has significant concentration ofcredit risk on amounts due from xxxx

The board of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are operated.

(iD Liquidity risk management
ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity,s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk tfuough continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023

(NB: The totals column should tie to the individuat elements of credit risk disclosed in the entity's
s tate metu of rtnanc i al pos i t ion)

KFTIII

At 30 June 2022 rcvrous car
Trade Pa ables 10,729,836

Cunent Portion Of Borowi 700,000-

Provisions

Defered Inconre 9,547,500

tionEnr lo ee Benefit Obli

Total 20,977,336

Atl30 June 2023 (current ycar)

Trade Pa ables 3,983,827 2,780,560 1,203,267 3,983,827

Current Portion Of Borrowi 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

Provisions

Deferred Inconre

e Benefit Obli lonEm lo

Total 6,493,927 2,780,560 3,703,267 6,493,927
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(iir) Market risk
The entity has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control malket risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum.
Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

The entity's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the marmer in which it
manages and measures the risk.

iv) Capital Risk Management
The objective ofthe entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to
continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

1,149,362,888 r,149,362,888Revaluation Reserve

(154,405,329) (62,919,626)Retained Earnings

594,8r9,230Capital Reserve 621,211,980

1,681,262,492Total Funds 1,616,169,539

3,200,000Total Borrowings 3,800,000

(6,708,6s7) (2,621,39s)Less: Cash and Bank Balances

1,613,260,882 1,681,841,097Net Debt(Excess Cash and Cash Equivalents)
78% 100%Gearing

40



North EasternNational Polytechnic
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for the year endcd 30th June 2023

28. Related Party Balances

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the
entity's eqniry interest. The covernnrent of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-
term lenders of the entity, both domestic and external. Other related parties include:

i) The National Govemment;
ii) The Parent Ministry;
iii) Key management;
iv) Board of directors;

The transactions and balances with related parties during the year are as

29, Evcnts Al'ter Ttrc Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

30, Ultimatc And Ilolding Entity

The entity is a TVET under the Ministry of Education Its ultimate parent is the
Government of Kenya.

31. Currcncy
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and the values are
rounded off to the nearest shilling.

a) Grants /Iransfcrs from the Government

Grants from National Govt 46,978,200 70,987,s00

Total 46,978,200 70,987500

Mana mcnt Conr cnsalionb

Directors'emoluments 699,000 1,626,300

Totnl 47 ,677,200 72,613,800
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18. Appendices

Appendir 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external aud.itor, and management colrments that were provided to the auditor.

1.0
Unsupported Expenditure
on Repairs and
maintenance

Responded to Resolved N/A

2.0 Unsupported transfers to
mentored institutions Responded to Not resolved 30m June 2023

3.0 Unsupported use of Goods
and Services

This was in relation to Local travel
where attendance registers were not
attached

Not resolved 30s June 2023

4.0 Unsupported Council registers and minutes were later
availed albeit late
The

Resolved N/A

5.0 Inng Outstanding student
receivables This was in relation to student arrears Not resolved 306 June 2023

6.0 Unsupported PPE

The PPE schedule was provided
though the auditors insisted that it was
not in the right fomrat. The
Polytechnic promised to generate one

Not resolved 30n June 2023

7.0 Budget and Budgetary
control

This was occasioned by the none
disbursement of Kshs 16 0513

Resolved N/A

8.0 Non compliance with law
on ethnic composition

Thee Polytechnic admitted that it was
very difficult to achieve this, however

has !s to correct thisthe
Not resolved 30s June 2023
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9.0 lncomplete Procurement
To be completed Not resolved 306 June 2023

10 Underutilized Intaagible
assets

ytechnic is in the process of
operationalization of all the modules
not in use

The Pol

Not resolved 306 June 2023

11 Uninspected Boarding
Equipment and Storcs

Was responded to and the Procuremnt
officer agreed to provide the
documents

Not resolved 30n June 2023

t2 Irregular Procurement of
lnsurance services Responded to Partly resolved 30s June 2023

13
c land

Iregular Lease of
Pol

management is in the process ofThe
lishi riskestab a mana ement o

Not resolved 30n June 2023
(D

Name
Accounting Officer
(The Principal)
Date tlr ;-k .>

la /t L-.;trn..Ln
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Appendix tr

.THE I\O R'TH EAS-rE R.I\r\,A-rt oNLA.l_ PO t_Y-rEc

- Inter-Entity Confirmation Letter

Hl\tc

North Eastern National P olytechnic
P.O Box 329-70100
Garissa

The State Department for Technical and Vocational Training rishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30ft June 2023 as indicated inthe table below' Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate tn" ."rr-" E in the table belowPlease sign and stamp this request in the space provided and ietum it to us.

Amounts Disbursed by [State Depart. For Technical Education
and Vocational Trainin as at 30th June 2023

Reference Number Date
Disbursed

Recurrent

(A)

Development

(B)

lnter-
Ministerial

(c) (D)=(A+Brc)

Total

Amount
Received by
North Eastem
National
Polytechnic
(Kshs) as at 30fr
hlr,e2023

Differences
(Kshs)

(F)=(D-E)

DTBCAP 9/36 I 27/10t2022 6,365,000 6,365,000 6,36s,000N/A 27t0ta023 5,640,000 5,640,000 5,640,000N/A 29/06t2023 5,640,000 5,640,000 5,640,000
MOE/VT'YADM2/76NOL
)av (29)

27106t2023 4,333,200 4,333,200 4,333,200

MOE/DTES/65 (13) 810u2022 17,500,000 17,500, 000 17,500,000
N/A 03t05t2023 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000
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Total 1 0

ln confirm that the amounts shown abovc are correct as ofthc datc indicafcd-

\t--'20aD te t

tity
I

e..:*. C ]---rr .a.h

IIerd fo ccoA tgull d ot fepartmen Enbeneficiary

Ntm t

,t
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Appenrfir fV: Reporting of Clirnate Relevant Erpeuditures

Therc was no oeenditue in relation to climde change in ihc Fy 2V2L23

Appendir V: Reporting on Disarter Management Erpenditure

There was no expenditure in relafed to disaster in theE\ 2021D2

r!
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